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RE: DPH Requests 21-80 and 20-2942 – May 7, 2021

Supervisor of Records Dennis Herrera:

This is a petition under Admin Code §67.21(d) to determine in writing that records or
parts thereof are public, regarding what DPH has labeled requests 21-80 and 20-2942.
Specifically, we challenge:

1. All redactions based on recommendation of the author. The City continues to
misunderstand Admin Code 67.24(a)(1).

All recommendations of authors are not exempt – that would merely be using the
deliberative process privilege under a different name as it is prohibited by Admin
Code 67.24(h). Only a draft recommendation of the author is exempt, not all
recommendations. And any factual content must be released as well within those
messages.

For example, if Colfax hypothetically initially recommends shutting down restau-
rants and bars because of 17 positive COVID tests, and then finally recommends
shutting down only bars then only the first recommendation is exempt as a draft
and the phrase "17 positive COVID tests" must be unredacted as factual informa-
tion.

Also, if the recommendations made by Colfax are not drafts at all and are his
only (and thus final) recommendations they need to be disclosed. Furthermore,
Elsbernd’s responses to Colfax’s exempt draft recommendations of the author are
not necessarily draft recommendations themselves (or vice-versa). No where is the
discussion by another party of the first party’s draft recommendation exempted
– in fact the exemption specifically states it must be the recommendation of the
author.
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2. All redactions based on official information privilege. The City continues to mis-
understand Evidence Code 1040.

DPH merely cites Evid Code 1040(a) – simply defining official information; it does
not exempt it. Only some not all official information is exempt – those exemptions
are defined in Evid Code 1040(b)(1) and (b)(2) and DPH must cite which of the
two exemptions they are using. The first exempts information whose disclosure is
prohibited by state or federal law (if you are using (b)(1) please state that other law
prohibiting disclosure). The second is a balancing test in the interest of justice (if
you are using (b)(2) please explain in detail how disclosing each of those messages
would harm the interest of justice).

3. All redactions under the attorney-client privilege on communications where no
attorney for the City is part of the communication.

Evid Code 954 protects "a confidential communication between client and lawyer"
– but these are not communications between the City and its lawyers. Communi-
cations between two non-DCA employees are not protected under Evid Code 954.
Even if Sean Elsbernd is a lawyer, he does not and cannot act as a lawyer for the
City (his law license is inactive in California).

DPH bears the burden of proof in showing how these exemptions apply to each redacted
message.

It appears DPH is just using the above citations to hide the sensitive information in
policy discussion.

Please order disclosed all public records not yet provided.

Sincerely,

Anonymous
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